UNITED
NATIONS E

Di str.

Economic and Social GENERAL

Council

E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
19 January 1998

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Sevent eent h session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 30t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 18 Novenber 1997, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: M. ALSTON

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

Second periodic report of the Donminican Republic (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Conmttee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued shortly
after the end of the session

GE. 97-19377 (E)



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES 16
AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

Second periodic report of the Doninican Republic (continued)
(E/ 1990/ 6/ Add. 7; E/C.12/1995/LQ 7; E/ C. 12/1/Add. 6)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the del egation of the
Dom ni can Republic took places at the Conmittee table.

Par agraphs 13 and 14 of the prelimnary concluding observations
(E/ C. 12/ 1/ Add. 6)

2. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that her del egation
recogni zed the existence of the problemof the migratory nmovements of the
Hai ti an popul ati on, but w shed to assure the menbers of the Committee that the
Government of the Dom ni can Republic was sparing no effort to resolve the
problem Three comi ssions had thus been set up: the Dom nican-Haitian
Conmi ssion, entrusted in particular with dealing with the probl em of
nationality, and two other comm ssions charged, respectively, with
noder ni zati on of the State and reform of the Constitution (including the

i ntroduction of the referendunm). The Governnent was al so taking other steps
to prevent the problem from becom ng worse, but nore significant measures
woul d be adopted once those commi ssions had reached decisions in consultation
with the public.

3. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO said that she would |ike sone clarification
about the arrangements made by the authorities to ensure famly reunification
Were there, as in Spain, adnministrative or other obstacles which neant that
children were separated fromtheir parents?

4, Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that her del egation
shared Ms. Jinenez Butraguefio's concerns, but the Dom nican Republic
unfortunately did not currently have available to it any statistics or reports
on the matter. She could nevertheless confirmthat separation concerned only
the adults and that, in the bateyes, children were not generally separated
fromtheir nothers. That was a priority issue and the authorities had al ready
taken - and were continuing to take - various |legislative neasures in that
field (adoption of the Mnors' Code, for exanple) and had put in place
programmes to assist fanmlies, although their action was limted by the
shortage of financial resources and the size of the public debt. The
situation was, however, gradually inproving.

5. Thanki ng Ms. Sabater de Macarrulla for her explanation, the CHAI RPERSON
invited the del egation to answer the other questions which had been asked
earlier.

6. M. LANDOLFI (Domi nican Republic) said that there was a real wllingness
in his country to deal with the mgration problemand related issues, but that
goal could not be achieved overnight in the view of the sizeable and




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 3

| ong-standi ng public debt. The change in governnent policy was a very
positive devel opnent, and the problem of the Haitians was being given serious
consi deration by both countries.

Par agr aph 15

7. On the question of discrimnation against Bl acks Ms. SABATER de
MACARRULLA (Dom ni can Republic) said that the phenonenon formed part of a
particular political context, but in practice there was no racial
discrimnation in the Dom nican Republic. Marriages and schools were m xed,
there was no segregation in the field of enploynment or in politics (as

wi t nessed, for exanple, by the fact that the opposition | eaders were Bl ack),
people of all colours could be seen on television and there was perfect

har nrony between the various comunities. |If there were any form of

di scrimnation, the Governnent would take energetic steps to conbat it.

Par agr aph 16

8. Regardi ng the corruption of judges, she confirned that corruption had
been a significant phenonmenon in the Dom nican Republic, both in the public
and in the private sectors, and that the judiciary had been nost particularly
concerned. Various steps had been taken to fight corruption, and a new
Suprene Court, whose menbers had been sel ected by the Dom ni can people as a
whol e through an interactive tel evision programre, had thus been created. The
Court was now sel ecting judges - again with the participation of civi

society - to help inprove the operation of the justice systemin general

Par agr aph 17

9. Regarding the |l ow | evel of budgetary resources devoted to education, she
said that the authorities intended to increase spending on education
significantly over the coming four years. Notw thstanding the current
shortage of financial resources, the authorities had conpleted the
construction of schools started sone years previously in rural areas, had

equi pped cl assroonms and i ntroduced conputers in many public institutions, both
in the capital and el sewhere in the country. 1t should also be pointed out
that, with the reformof the school canteen system and the |ending of books to
children, attendance at educational institutions had increased to such an
extent that the country now actually |acked cl assroons. Education was,
therefore, one of the Governnment's priorities, as too was health. The
hospitals in Santo Domi ngo had been inproved, doctors had been appointed in
rural clinics and the salaries of teachers and nedical staff had been

consi derably increased.

10. Concerning the increase in the renuneration of teachers, M. GCRI SSA
asked whether their salaries had risen faster than inflation; if not, that
woul d nean that teachers' purchasing power had decli ned.

11. M. RIEDEL said that he was reasonably satisfied with the reply given by
t he del egati on concerning paragraph 17, but would like to have figures on the
i mprovenents made in the school system



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 4

12. Reverting to paragraph 16, M. ADEKUOYE asked whether conpl aints
procedures had been included in the current reformof the judicial system

13. In reply to M. Adekuoye, M. LANDOLFI (Dom nican Republic) said the
Suprene Court had for many years been able to punish any form of abuse
commtted by a judge in the exercise of his functions, and there was greater
transparency in the country's new judicial system

14. As to the question of renuneration, all salaries had been increased in
the public service, particularly those for Cabinet mnisters, who had been
driven towards corruption by their extrenely low pay. In the private sector

a consensus-based policy generally enabl ed workers and enployers to reach a
conprom se on what was bei ng asked and what was granted. The m ni mum wage

whi ch varied in amobunt dependi ng on nmany paraneters, such as the sector of
activity or the geographical region, had been raised considerably by the npst
recent agreement concluded between workers and enployers. The inflation rate
fluctuated between 9 and 10 per cent. The macroecononic policy pursued by the
Governnment in that regard was exenplary. The Government was keeping petro
prices high, despite public discontent, in order to absorb part of the

ext ernal debt.

15. The CHAI RPERSON, following up on M. Riedel's coments, said it was
i nportant for the delegation to provide statistical data so that the

i nformati on given woul d be nore nmeani ngful and enabl e the nenbers of the
Conmittee to draw nore accurate concl usions.

16. Referring to the witten replies of 1995, which had nmenti oned

a 15 per cent inflation rate, M. GRISSA said he would Iike to know whet her
inflation had really been brought down to 9 per cent in the space of

two years, as indicated by the del egation. He would al so appreciate nore
specific informati on about the nature of the increase in the m ni rum wage.

17. M_. RIEDEL expressed concern about the fact that, as stated in

paragraph 17, State expenditures on education and training as a proportion of
total public expenditure represented |ess than half of the average for

Latin Anerica. He would lIike the delegation to provide nore figures
concerning public spending on education. Wat were the estimtes for 1998 and
had the situation inproved?

18. M. LANDOLFI (Dom nican Republic), reverting to the Chairperson's
coment on the m ni mum wage, acknow edged that the statistics provided did not
al ways neet international standards. The m ni mum wage had actually been

i ncreased followi ng an agreenent between workers and enpl oyers, but the
drought and consequent shortages had cancelled out the increase, with the
result that the m ni rum wage was not enough to cover all needs.

19. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that the del egation
did not have any additional figures on education but would supply them as soon
as possible. The President of the Republic had, however, called for the share
of spending on education to be raised to 20 per cent of the national budget.
In the new budget, therefore, the resources allocated to that sector had been
doubl ed.




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 5

20. M_. LANDOLFI (Dom nican Republic) said that, under an anbitious

presi dential progranme, each school in the country was to be equi pped with at
| east one computer. The official aimof the authorities, noreover, was for
all schoolchildren to be initiated in the use of conputers. That marked an

i mportant step forward in the realization of cultural rights and woul d have
positive effects on the social and econonmic |life of young people.

21. M. WMR said that he would like to know the rate of inflation and what
statistics were used to determ ne the wage increases granted to workers in the
public and private sectors. More precise information on the nature and extent
of those increases would give a better idea of the social situation in the
country.

22. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that, according to
the nost recent Central Bank report, the inflation rate was bel ow 10 per cent.
Wil e the macroeconom ¢ situation was good, the country faced two ngjor
chal I enges, nanely the public debt and the hopes raised by the conmng to

of fice of the new Governnent. The preceding Governnent had |eft an enornous

i nternal debt, a problemthat the new admi nistration had pl edged to resol ve.
Despite the increases, the m ni mum wage was obviously still insufficient, but
t he new budget did not provide for an increase, except in sectors considered
essenti al .

23. M. LANDOLFI (Dom nican Republic) said that the issue of the m ninum
wage had given rise to a very interesting debate centering on whether wages
shoul d again be increased, at the risk of forcing sonme enterprises to close,
or whether the m ni mum wage should be kept at the current |level to protect
jobs. Many trade union | eaders had favoured the second option

Par agr aph 18

24. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that there had

i ndeed been | arge-scale enmigration of Dom nicans, often in tragic
circunmstances. Job creation was in her viewthe only way to stemthe outfl ow
of skilled workers. For that reason the nunmber of free trade zones had been

i ncreased in border regions to generate enploynent. O her nmeasures had al so
been taken to stinulate investnment and encourage the establishment of snal

busi nesses. Interest rates had been brought down to 12 per cent and the banks
could grant |oans without collateral. At the social level, the aimwas to
improve living conditions and offer better protection. |In that regard, the
Government was working on a social security bill to be put before Parlianent.

25. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO and M. ANTANOVICH said that they would like to
have a copy of the bill.

26. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic), explaining that the text
was not yet ready, indicated that both workers and enpl oyers had been invol ved
inits drafting.

27. M. ANTANOVICH, reverting to the | ast sentence of paragraph 18, said
that the budgetary neasures taken in the field of education could certainly




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 6

contribute to stenm ng the outflow of skilled workers, but they were not
enough in thenmselves. He would like to know precisely what neasures had been
taken in the socio-economic field to slow the pace of em gration

28. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that, in the field
of education, the essential aimwas to provide training that corresponded to
the jobs available in the | abour market. At the legislative |evel, the Labour
Code offered | egal safeguards to all workers, who could avail thenselves of
the services of |egal advisers.

29. M. LANDOLFI (Dom nican Republic) said that in a denpcracy everyone was
free to go wherever he pleased. The emigration of skilled workers was a
personal decision that one could do nothing to prevent.

30. M . ADEKUOYE renmarked that the outflow was an awkward probl em facing al
devel opi ng countries close to the United States, which attracted many eni grant
workers |ike a magnet. Wthout economic reformand political stability, it
was difficult to curb em gration

31. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that creating jobs
was the only way to prevent the brain drain, since it was insecurity and
instability that forced people to | eave. The econom c neasures taken to curb
em gration had to be coupled with | egislative nmeasures, including provisions
for social security. Since the increase in teachers' salaries, fewer nenbers
of that profession were seeking to |leave. The Dom ni can Republic was,
however, a small country with enornous needs, and it could not do everything
at once.

Par agraphs 19 and 20

32. M. LANDOLFI (Dom nican Republic) said that there were still sone
breaches of workers' rights but the Mnistry of Labour had vigorously combated
t hat phenonenon, so that no foreign-owned conpany, and still |ess a Dom nican
conpany, could now violate workers' rights with inpunity. 1In that regard, the
Penal Code set very heavy penalties.

33. Turning to paragraph 20, he acknow edged that the penitentiary system
was archaic, but pointed out that nore nodern prisons had been built. Sone
pri sons now had sports grounds and offered training courses, and other changes
were to be introduced later. Prisoners could, noreover, demand to be treated
in accordance with the provisions of the Covenant.

34. M. TEXIER said that the nmenbers of the nission sent by the Committee to
the Dom ni can Republic had net the | eaders of the main trade union

organi zations, as well as the Mnister of Labour. The trade unionists had
indicated that union rights in the free trade zones had not been respected as
wel | as el sewhere. Working conditions in those zones were hard, particularly
for wonen. The nenbers of the m ssion had conveyed those concerns to the

M ni ster of Labour, who had not denied that sone problens existed. Wat was
the current situation and were there still conplaints fromthe trade unions?

35. M. AHMED recalled that, at its previous session, the Commttee had been
informed that the owners of the free zones were not encouragi ng workers to



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 7

join unions and recruited only non-unionized |abour, so that they woul d not
have to apply the provisions of the Covenant. Concerning paragraph 20, the
reply provided by the del egation was only a general statenent. He would I|ike
cl ear answers to sone specific questions: was it true that the penal system
al l oned nenbers of the famly of an accused person who ran away to be

i mprisoned without trial as a guarantee? Wre prisoners supposed to buy their
own neal s?

36. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that the

i mpri sonment of nenbers of the family of an accused person on the run was a
practice belonging to a bygone age when penal institutions had been nore I|ike
ol d people's honmes than prisons. The President of the Republic, a | awer by
training, wanted to see the penal systemrefornmed. |In addition to the
bui | di ng of new prisons and the nodernization of existing establishnents,

i nprovenents had been made in regard to the nutrition of prisoners, their
conditions of detention and visits. The reformwas being undertaken jointly
by the public authorities and civil society.

37. Replying to M. Ahned's second question, she said that prisoners were
not required to pay for their neals, either at the weekends or during the
week.

38. M . ADEKUOYE said that, according to the International Labour

Organi zation (ILO) Committee of Experts, trade union federations had to obtain
a two-thirds mgjority in order to be entitled to form confederations. That
was an excessive requirenent. Had the CGovernnent of the Dom nican Republic
taken steps to anmend that |egislation?

39. The CHAI RPERSON i nqui red about the rate of unionization in the free
trade zones.

40. M. LANDOLFI (Domi nican Republic) said that unionization in the free
trade zones was a difficult problem not because the workers were not
supported by the authorities, but rather because of the obstinacy of foreign
entrepreneurs, who had introduced nethods previously unknown to the subregion
He was regrettably unable to answer M. Adekuoye's question in specific terns,
and could only point out that there were many trade unions in his country and
nore were being set up every day. Furthernore, the | egislature alone could
anmend the | aws, the executive branch being enpowered only to submt bills.

Par agr aph 21

41. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that the Governnent
had never pronoted sex tourism and was endeavouring to conmbat that phenomenon.
The authorities had on various occasi ons deported foreign nationals engagi ng
in such of tourism In cooperation with the private sector, noreover, they
had | aunched an extensive canpai gn abroad to pronote ecol ogical and cultura
tourism Concerning AIDS, the Governnment had organized national education
canpai gns.




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 8

42. M. CRISSA, observing that the problem of AIDS could not be reduced to
its sexual dinension and that the Cari bbean was a crossroads for drug
trafficking, asked about the situation in the Dom nican Republic in that
regard.

43. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that the authorities
were wagi ng an unrelenting battle against drug trafficking, as attested by the
guantities of drugs seized daily. Those efforts were being pursued in
agreement with the international institutions, since it was a problemthat the
Dom ni can Republic could not resolve alone. Lastly, the courts were fully
engaged in that fight and handed down severe sentences.

44. M . ANTANOVI CH said he would like to have statistics on Al DS making
conparisons with other Latin Anerican countries, and asked whether the steps
taken by the CGovernnent to elinmnate sex tourismhad |ed to any appreciable
reduction in the spread of the virus.

45. M. TEXIER and M. WMER said they had noted during their visit to the
Dom ni can Republic that the AIDS prevention canpai gns had been very discreet
and had not underlined the need to use contraceptives. It would be
interesting to know what position was taken by the Church on propaganda to
combat Al DS

46. M. RIEDEL said that he would wel come nore infornmation about the
econom c, social and cultural aspects of AIDS. |In particular, he would like
to know whet her people with AIDS recei ved appropriate treatment in the

hospi tal s, whether there was any segregati on and what proportion of patients
were treated in hospitals not only in the capital but also in other tourist

| ocati ons.

47. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that while the
peopl e of the Dom ni can Republic were very Catholic and the Church played an
important role in the country, that did not seemto her to be having any
particul ar inpact on the form of propaganda to conbat AIDS. The problemwas a
cultural one and could be resolved only gradually, through education. For
that reason the Governnment was attaching great inportance to sex education
courses, which were dispensed fromthe first years of schooling.

48. M. LANDOLFI (Dom nican Republic) said that it was difficult to conpare
the fluctuating statistics on the spread of AIDS. Wiile there appeared to be
an increase in the nunber of people with AIDS in tourist countries,
particularly in the tropics, it was inmpossible to obtain an exact figure
because the majority of cases had not yet been detected and the people
concerned did not informthe authorities of their condition. |In that regard,
he regretted that the World Health Organization had not acted on the proposa
to create an international health certificate.

Par agr aph 22

49. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Domi nican Republic) said that wonen were

wel | -organi zed, both in the cities and in the countrysi de, and were exercising
their rights. The fact that their situation had inproved was due less to the
nmeasures taken by the various CGovernnents than to the battle they thensel ves




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 9

had been wagi ng. Wonen had, in particular, obtained the right to benefit from
the agrarian reform the right to housing, the right to obtain credit quite
freely and the right to nedical insurance. They were well-represented in the
uni versities and schools. Now they were endeavouring to make progress in the
political field. A bill had been introduced with a view to inproving the
participation of women in elective office and political posts. Nunerous |aws
had been revised. Wnen could | odge conpl aints about violations of their
rights before the courts and could be assisted by a | awer. The Governnent
was encouragi ng the wonmen's struggle. It had |aunched a canpai gn agai nst the
ill-treatnment of which they were victins. Wnen's Rights Day was cel ebrat ed,
and machi sno was begi nning to di sappear, especially anbng younger nen.

50. Ms. BONOAN- DANDAN and M. RIEDEL said that they would |ike the

del egation to el aborate on the neasures taken by the Governnent and provide
specific answers to the questions listed in paragraph 22 of the prelimnary
concl udi ng observati ons.

51. M. TEXIER said the creation of a Directorate-General for the
Advancenent of Wonen was a positive neasure and its eventual transformtion
into a mnistry or office of secretary of State would represent a further step
forward. He w shed, noreover, to draw attention to the situation of Haitian
worren in the Dom ni can Republic, which was nore difficult than that of other
wonen. Haitian women were not recognized by the authorities and often had to
engage in prostitution

52. M. W MER observed that there were also prostitutes fromthe
Dom ni can Republic in Haiti who did not have the neans to return to their
own country and who had no protection either fromthe Governnment of the
Dom ni can Republic or fromthe Haitian Governmnent.

53. M. GRI SSA asked whet her working wonmen had the right to dispose of their
own inconme freely or whether they required their husbands' perm ssion to do
so.

54. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO sai d that she would also Iike to know whet her
worren needed the permnission of their husbands to exercise an occupation and
whet her the law treated wonen differently frommen in civil, penal and famly
matters.

55. M. LANDOLFI (Dom nican Republic) replied that the law, now fully
anended, proclained the equality of nen and wonmen. The administration of a
wife's property, resources and wages by the husband was a universal reality.
However, the Constitution enbodied the principle of “fam |y property”, which
was intended to protect the famly. The | awmker considered marriage to be
the | egal bond par excellence for the couple. |If that bond was dissol ved, the
property was then divided equally between the spouses. The |iberation of
wonen was a reality in the Dom nican Republic, but wonmen used that freedom

wi th exceptional talent. The well-known nmachisnmo was nost often associ ated
with lack of education and ignorance.

56. The | aw refornms went nuch further than m ght be supposed. Act No. 24/97
on violence within the famly conpletely prohibited and severely puni shed any
form of violence, whether by the father or by the husband. Social progress



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 10

went even further in that respect: the Directorate-General for the
Advancenent of Wonen had concl uded inter-agency agreenents to ensure fenmal e
representation in alnmost all sectors of public life. The Iist of legal rights
acqui red by wonen was too long to enunerate, although it was true that there
was still rmuch to do in that regard. The Domi ni can Republic was endeavouring
to achi eve an acceptabl e degree of progress in the econom c, social and
cultural fields, not only for wonen, but also for men, for the famly and for
soci ety in general

57. M. CRISSA challenged the statenent that control by the husband over his
wife's property was a universal reality. Furthernore, the delegation of the
Dom ni can Republic had not answered the question whether wonmen were free to

di spose as they saw fit of the proceeds of their |abour or whether it was the
husband who took the decisions in that regard.

58. Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO said that control by the husband over his wife's
property was not a universal reality. |In Spain, for example, the situation
had evol ved greatly in a quarter of a century. Wnen were now free to open a
bank account, to authorize their children to travel, and so on. Wat was the
situation in the Dom nican Republic? Did wonmen need perm ssion to take up
enpl oynent? Was there a difference in treatment in |aw between nmen and wonen?

59. M. AHMED al so noted that the question regarding the status of married
worren had not been answered, and inquired whether wonen in general were
entitled to have their own identity cards (cedul as) or whether they could use
only the famly identity card. Possession of such a docunent was essentia
for many purposes.

60. M s. BONOAN- DANDAN poi nted out that the Governnent of the

Dom ni can Republic was required to guarantee the econom c, social and cultura
rights of women, who, as it acknow edged, were victinms of violations of those
rights. It was nore than tinme for that obligation to become a reality.

61. M. ADEKUOYE, referring also to the question of equality between nen and
wonen, asked whether a divorced man was bound to support his famly.

62. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) replied that single wonen
heads of household could certainly benefit fromthe agrarian reformand the
Governnment ' s housi ng programme, and were even given priority. They also had
the right to becone honeowners. As to the adm nistrative machinery allow ng
worren to file conplaints in cases of discrimnation by the Dom nican Agrarian
Institute, wonen had the sane rights as nmen and therefore could Iikew se
appeal to any conpetent body. Regarding the neasures taken by the Governnent
to protect fermal e workers against discrimnation or arbitrary di sm ssa

related to pregnancy, including neasures to prevent enployers from demandi ng
pregnancy tests, the Labour Code guaranteed wonen the right to work and

provi ded for three nonths' maternity | eave, which could be taken in full after
childbirth, if the woman so wi shed. Abuses in that regard, encountered mainly
in the private sector, were on the decline. The CGovernnent was al so taking
steps to reduce the maternal nortality rate, which was excessively high
despite the high rate of hospital births. The Mnistry of Health, headed by a
wonman doctor, was taking the appropriate nmeasures, and sonme results should be
perceptible in 1998. As to common |aw marri ages and the woman's | oss of her




E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 11

entitlenents in cases of separation, abandonnment or the death of the nale head
of househol d, the insurance conpanies increasingly recognized the rights of

t he concubi ne, provided however that there was no legitimte spouse. The
Council for Wonen was al so taking action in that direction

63. A wonman coul d open an account and manage it within the context

of marriage. Ildentity cards were conpulsory for all nationals aged

over 18 years, including wonen, whether they were married, w dowed or

divorced. Until fairly recently, the husband' s perm ssion had been required
to obtain an identity card, but the | aw had changed and that was no | onger the

case. In readers for children, the discrimnatory stereotypes concerning
worren were gradually being elimnated. Machisnmo still existed, of course, but
it was gradually losing ground. The Governnment supported all initiatives
ai med at enhancing the status of wonen, and the National Council for Wnen was
preparing new draft legislation to that end. There was certainly still a |long

way to go to achieve equality between nmen and wonen, but real progress had
been made. There renmined the major problem of prostitution of Dom nican
wonen in Haiti and vice versa, a problemthat had to be sol ved through
cooperation between the two countries.

Par agr aph 23

64. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) said that special courts
were now being set up by the Governnent to address the problem of violence
agai nst wonen and chil dren.

65. M. RATTRAY, supported by Ms. BONOAN- DANDAN, inquired about the nature
of those courts. Did they deal only with domestic violence or violence
agai nst wonen, or did they have broader powers?

66. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) explained that the
speci al courts were concerned with viol ence agai nst wonen and children. They
were in the process of being established and not all of them were operationa
as yet.

Par agr aph 24

67. M. TOCA SI MO (Domini can Republic), turning to the question of difficult
access to safe drinking water for the rural popul ation and people living in
deprived urban areas, said it was true that the facilities were stil

i nadequat e, but considerable efforts were being nade in that regard. For
exanpl e, all the plans designed to enhance the quality of life in the
comunity included the supply of drinking water considering its great

i mportance for public health. In rural areas, efforts were being nade to
bui |l d aqueducts, but many inhabitants of those areas still did not have access
to drinking water. It was planned to allocate 4,176 nmllion pesos over

four years, divided between 11 different progranmes, to build 65,000 nodern
dwel | ing units.



E/ C. 12/ 1997/ SR. 30
page 12

Par agr aph 25

68. M. TEXIER said he would lIike to know what had been done and what stil
remai ned to be done in the Dom nican Republic to guarantee the right to
housi ng.

69. Ms. SABATER de MACARRULLA (Dom nican Republic) replied that her

Gover nment had been paying great attention to the matter, conpleting all the
housi ng projects started under previous Governnents, but the nost positive
aspect of its action to pronote nei ghbourhood devel opnent was the cl ose
cooperation that had been established, contrary to previous practice, with the
comuni ty, non-governmental organizations and civil society, which had net

bef ore but had not worked together. About 40 nei ghbour hood devel opnent pl ans
had been instituted with the participation of the conmunities concerned, which
had thensel ves set the priorities, generally calling for nore schools and

i nproved sanitation. Such cooperation had considerably notivated the peopl e,
who had responded very positively. The Governnent had al so approved a project
for environmental, human and social restructuring of neighbourhoods, wth

800 mlIlion pesos being allocated for their devel opnent over a period

of 23 nmonths. It was now out of the question to evict residents from

t hose nei ghbour hoods, unless they could be found better accomrdati on

13,800 famlies living in dangerous conditions on the banks of a river were,
therefore, about to be rehoused. Two commi ssions had al so been appointed - a
presidential conm ssion, entrusted with defining the priorities for the

devel opnent of such nei ghbour hoods, and a provincial conm ssion, which was
concerned with the housing situation in the country's 23 provinces. In

that regard, the report of the mission of experts which had visited the
Dom ni can Republic from 1l to 26 Septenber 1997 correctly reflected the
situation in the country.

The neeting rose at 6.05 p. m




